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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (if known) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Augustus Lutheran Church is a plain sandstone structure with a polygonal
apse and gambrel roof. The building has undergone several renewals since
its erection in 1743, Five new roofs have been put on since 1814, the
most recent one being done in 1974. In 1814 plaster was put on the sand-
stone walls which were eroding. At this time the interior was painted in
a style typical for German or Pennsylvania Dutch in the manner common in
Germany. There is an asymmetrical placement of windows on the side which
is in keeping with the older building tradition of vernacular architecture,
unconcerned with Georgian formality.

In 1968 efforts were made to remove the plaster and find an alternative
method of preservation, but all of these proved unsatisfactory. Only the
cornerstone has been left uncovered. All the window sash and frames were
replaced in 1968,

Very few changes have been made on the interior as well. There are
galleries on three sides, two of which date from 1743, The northeast loft
was built in 1752 for the new organ imported from Europe, parts of which
can still be seen in the church. The imposing paneled walnut pulpit,
which serves as the focal point of the interior, was received in 1745 as

a gift from English church members.

All of the pews are original. Those beneath the organ loft were for the
elders; those beneath the western gallery, with carved doors and elaborate
locks were for the wealthier members of the congregation. As was customary
in the colonial period, the sexes were separated. Here, the women sat on
the northeast side and the men opposite. Servants and boys used plain
high backed benches in the gallery.

In 1928, the building underwent a major restoration. At this time, wooden
floorboards were removed from over the original flagstone and old stoves
were taken out. The interior paint was restored to the 1814 design, with a
section of one pillar left exposed to reveal the sources for the restora-
tion. At this time the balaustrade, carved with its heartshapes, was
painted light blue and the pillars were decorated with a wavy black and
white pattern.,

BOUNDARIES

Augustus Lutheran Church is located on a large area of land owned by the
church for use as a cemetery. The boundary is drawn to include the
original cemetery property indicated by the old sandstone wall along 7th
Street and to exclude the new church buildings; beginning at the northeast
corner of the wall and continuing along 7th Street in a straight line
until it intersects with the wall along main street at the southeast
corner, then along Main Street, past the old gate to the beginning of the
path to the new church at the southwest corner, then along the path on the
east side, following it around the new church to its east side and con-
tinuing in a straight line until reaching a point directly in line with the
(continued)
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Augustus Lutheran Church, located in Trappe Pennsylvania, exemplifies
early German rural construction in this country and as such, serves as an
excellent example of the regional type of church built in the early
Pennsylvania German manner. The exterior walls, originally of local
sandstone, have been plastered and the gambrel roof of wooden shingles
has undergone several needed renewals, but the integrity of the structure
is incredibly intact. Original handhewn timbers, hand-forged nails, and
hinges and door latches, the 1745 pulpit, the 1795 altar, and original
pews, some with carved wooden doors and elaborately forged hinges, are
still in place, Another interesting Pennsylvania German feature is the
church's cut-out gallery railing with heart-shaped figures. Augustus
Lutheran Church remains today one of the best examples of the vernacular
architecture of America's German settlement with a high degree of
integrity that is relatively undisturbed by the later church buildings.

HISTORY

Augustus Lutheran Church is the oldest extant Lutheran church building

in the United States. It was built by Dr. Heinrich Melchior Muhlenburg,
one of four Pietists who were pioneers in the religious life of America.
Work on the building began in 1743, the year after his arrival. The
building was dedicated in September, 1745 and services were held regularly
for more than a century. In 1852 a new, larger church was built, but

the old building is still used for summer services.
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7. Description: (1) Augustus Lutheran Church

beginning point at the old wall, then from this northeast point in a straight
line to the point of beginning at the old wall, as shown on the sketch map.
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